AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION LOCAL UNION 517M

and

THE WATERVLIET BOARD OF EDUCATION

for

2015-2016, 2016-2017 and 2017-2018 School Years

WATERVLIET PUBLIC SCHOOLS WATERVLIET, MICHIGAN

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Article</u>		Page
1	Purpose and Intent	2
2	Recognition	2-3
3	Management Rights	3
4	Strikes and Lockouts	4
5	Probation	4
6	Seniority	4-6
7	Layoff and Recall	6
8	Stewards	7
9	Grievance Procedure	7-8
10	Disciplinary Procedure	8-9
11	Absence	9-10
12	Sick Leave	10
13	Wages and Hours	11
14	Safety and Health	12
15	General	12-14
16	Separability and Savings Clause	15
17	Duration of Agreement	16
	Addendums A, B, C, D	17-18
	Addendum E	18

PURPOSE AND INTENT

The purpose of this agreement is to set forth the wages, hours and working conditions, which shall prevail for the duration of this agreement, and to promote orderly and peaceful labor relations for the mutual interest of the employer and the employees and the union. The employer and the union for and in consideration of the mutual promises, stipulations, and conditions hereinafter specified, agree to abide by the terms and provisions set forth herein for the duration of this agreement.

ARTICLE 2

RECOGNITION

- A. Recognition: The employer recognizes and acknowledges that the Union is the exclusive representative in collective bargaining with the employer for school bus drivers and food service employees. School bus drivers shall include any employee holding a Board approved permanent position, on a school year basis, who is employed to drive a school bus on a daily basis and who performs regularly assigned driving duties for a period of at least 10 hours per week. All employees shall include any employee holding an approved permanent position, on a school year basis, who is primarily employed to provide food support services on a daily basis and who performs regularly assigned food service duties for a period of at least 10 hours per week. All office, other service employees, teachers, substitutes, supervisors, food service director, and administrators shall be excluded from the terms of this agreement.
- B. The Union agrees to indemnify and save the Board, including each individual school board member and representative of the Board, harmless against any and all claims, demands, cost of suits or other forms of liability, including back pay and all court or administrative agency costs, that may arise out of or by reason of action by the Board or its representatives for the purpose of complying with this section.
- C. The employer and the Union agree that for the duration of this agreement, neither shall discriminate against any employee because of race, color, age, creed, sex, sexual orientation, nationality or political belief nor shall the employer or its agents nor the Union, its agents or members, discriminate against any employee because of his or her membership in the Union.

- D. The employer recognizes and will deal with all elected or appointed committeemen, members of the unit, or a representative of the International or Local Union in all matters relating to grievances or interpretations of the agreement.
 - A written list of the committeemen, members of the union and stewards shall be
 furnished to the employer within fifteen (15) days after the signing of this agreement.
 Any changes in Union committeemen or stewards subsequent to that time shall be
 presented to the employer in writing within (15) fifteen days of the new committeemen's
 election or appointment.
 - The employer agrees to such arrangements as may be necessary for the Union representative to properly and expeditiously carry on their Union duties. Such arrangements shall include permission for committeemen or stewards to investigate or bring about a proper expeditious disposition of a grievance or complaint.
 - The employer agrees that no committeemen, stewards or aggrieved persons shall suffer loss of pay while processing grievances or conducting negotiations or engaged in other official joint Union-Employer activities.
 - 4. Nothing herein contained shall prevent any member of the bargaining unit from processing his or her own grievance however any member shall be accompanied by their Union official during the processing of a grievance or complaint.

MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

- A. The school district retains the sole and exclusive right to manage and conduct its obligations in accordance with the laws of the State of Michigan, subject only to the condition that it shall not do so in any manner which constitutes an express violation of this Agreement. Without limiting to any extent the generality of the foregoing, the school district shall have the right to promulgate at any time and to enforce any rules, policies and regulations which it considers necessary or advisable for the safe, effective and efficient operation of the school district, including the right to use improved methods or equipment.
- B. It is further recognized that the responsibility for management of the school district for the selection and direction of the working forces, including the right to hire, suspend, discharge, assign, promote, or transfer, to determine the amount of overtime to be worked, to relieve employees from duty because of lack of work or for other legitimate reasons, to determine the route and stop, to assign employees to the bus run, to determine the time of the bus runs, designate the places where buses are parked, make assignments of substitutes, make any changes in routes or procedures, to determine the uses of kitchen facilities, to assign employees to specific schools, to determine the time of the lunch periods, designate the places where lunches are served, make assignments of substitutes, make any changes in procedures, is vested exclusively in the school district, subject only to the express provisions of this Agreement as hereinafter set forth.

STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS

The Union agrees that during the life of this agreement neither the Union, its agents nor its members will authorize, instigate, aid, condone, or engage in a strike, slowdown or any other concerted interference with the operations of the Employer. The Employer agrees that it will not lockout employees.

ARTICLE 5

PROBATION

A new employee shall work under the provisions of this Agreement, but shall be employed only on a 90 actual working day trial basis during which period he/she may be discharged without further recourse. The 90 actual working days only includes those days actually worked and does not include holidays, sick days, etc. or a right to the grievance procedure. By ninety (90) actual working days, the employee shall be evaluated. If the employer deems the evaluation to be acceptable, the employee shall be placed on the regular seniority list dating back 90 days prior. The summer months between the close of the school year shall not be counted toward the probation period for all employees covered by this agreement. Probationary employees shall not have a right to any fringe benefits provided pursuant to this Agreement. (R-15)

ARTICLE 6

SENIORITY

- A. New employees hired in the unit shall be considered as probationary employees for the first 90 actual working days of their employment excluding holidays, sick days, etc. When an employee finishes the probationary period he/she shall be entered on the seniority list of the unit and shall rank for seniority from the day 90 working days prior to the day he/she completed the probationary period. There shall be no seniority among probationary employees. (R-15)
- B. Seniority shall be on a school-wide basis by classification only within the unit, in accordance with the employee's last date of hire.
- During the probationary period the probationary employee will receive the starting rate of said position.
- D. An employee shall lose his/her seniority for the following reasons only:
 - He/she quits.
 - He/she is discharged.

- He/she is laid off for a period of more than one (1) year.
- He/she is absent for five (5) consecutive working days without notifying the school district. In proper cases, exceptions may be made by the school district.
- He/she does not return to work when recalled from layoff as set forth in the recall
 procedure. In proper cases, exceptions may be made by the school district.
- Return from sick leave and leaves of absence will be treated the same as (4) and (5) above. (R-15)

BIDDING FOR JOBS

E. When a permanent vacancy occurs in any classification, employees may exercise their seniority by bidding for such vacancy within a classification (bus driver or food service worker).

Although the Board reserves the right to assign any employee within a job classification so long as the employee suffers no loss in pay or loss in hours worked, such vacancy shall be assigned to the bidding employee with the most seniority who is qualified to satisfactorily perform such duties, as determined by the latest performance evaluation, if at all possible. Full consultation will take place with all employees whose assignment will change before such change is finalized. No assignment will be made which will be arbitrary or capricious. (R-15)

BUS DRIVERS

- F. The opportunity for bus drivers to take special runs, (field trips, sports events, etc.) shall be offered on a rotation basis to those employees who have finished their probationary period and are qualified to satisfactorily perform the work required. It is understood that, for the purpose of fairly allocating such available work, a refusal to accept such assignment shall be considered as if the employee accepted the same.
 - The least senior driver shall take the trip if all other drivers, including substitutes, refuse.
 A driver who is assigned a trip under this provision shall not be precluded from taking his/her rightful place in the very next rotation. (R-06)
 - 2. In the event a driver gives up their regular route to make a special run, the driver will be compensated at a minimum 2 hours of drive time pay. (R-15)
 - 3. In the event a driver is scheduled to make a special run which is canceled, said driver shall be compensated for regular run time lost in anticipation of said run. In the event a run is canceled without notification of a driver and driver reports and prepares his/her bus for said run, said driver shall receive his/her regular rate. If proper notification has been attempted, however, such liability shall not accrue to the Board. If a driver reports to drive a trip which does not overlap with a regular run time and the trip is subsequently canceled, the driver shall be paid for two (2) hours. (R-03)
 - Permanent extra runs (for example, Van Buren Tech Center, Homework Hideout, etc.)
 will each be offered on a monthly rotation to those employees who have finished their
 probationary period and are qualified to satisfactorily perform the work required,

beginning with the most senior driver. It is understood that for the purpose of fairly allocating such available work, a refusal to accept such assignment shall be considered as if the employee accepted the same. (N-12)

Weekend trips shall be offered on a separate rotation list from weekday trips. (N-06)

FOOD SERVICE WORKERS

- G. The opportunity for food service workers to take special assignments (banquets, fund raisers, etc.) and substitute duties shall be offered on a rotation basis to those employees who have finished their probationary period and are qualified to satisfactorily perform the work required. It is understood that, for the purpose of fairly allocating such available work only, a refusal to accept such assignment shall be considered as if the employee accepted the same. (R-92)
 - Regular food service employees shall be given preference for substitute duties in a higher classification. Such temporary transfers shall be offered to an employee in order of seniority, and any employee temporarily transferred to a position within a higher rate of pay for more than one full day shall receive the higher rate of pay for that classification at the Probation 1 year rate for the duration of the transfer. (R-15)
 - 2. Any food service worker who refuses eight (8) substitute duties in total or five (5) substitute duties in a row during the school year, except those that occur during the Thanksgiving, Christmas, and Spring Breaks, will be removed from the rotation list for the remainder of the year. The least senior food service employee shall take the assignment if all other food service workers refuse. (N-92)

ARTICLE 7

LAYOFF AND RECALL

- A. If it becomes necessary for a layoff, the following procedure will be followed. Probationary employees will be laid off by classification on a school-wide basis. Seniority employees will be laid off according to seniority within classification as defined above. In proper cases by mutual agreement exceptions may be made.
- B. Employees to be laid off will be given at least seven (7) calendar days notice of layoff. Such notice shall be mailed to the employee's last known address by registered or certified mail.
- C. When the working force is increased after a layoff, employees shall be recalled in inverse order of layoff (i.e., the last employee laid off shall be the first employee recalled). Recall rights shall terminate one (1) year from the date of layoff from the classification. (R-15)

STEWARDS

A. The employer hereby agrees to recognize two (2) non probationary employees to act as a grievance representative under this agreement. It shall be the function of the steward to act in a representative capacity for the purpose of processing and investigating grievances for employees covered by this agreement. The steward shall be paid at their regular rate of pay for processing grievances during work hours when a substitute is available.

ARTICLE 9

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

- A. A grievance shall be an alleged violation of the expressed terms of this contract. An employee whose name does not appear on the seniority list shall have no rights to the grievance procedure. Any alleged grievance which arose while the employee was in his/her probation period may not be processed as a grievance until after the employee completes his/her probationary period.
- B. The Union shall designate one steward per classification to handle grievances when requested by the grievant.
- C. The term "days" as used herein shall mean work days.
- D. Written grievances as required herein shall contain the following:
 - 1. It shall be signed and dated by the grievant or grievants.
 - 2. It shall be specific.
 - 3. It shall contain a synopsis of the facts giving rise to the alleged violation.
 - It shall cite the section or subsection of this contract alleged to have been violated.
 - It shall contain the date of the alleged violation.
 - It shall specify the relief requested.

Any written grievance not substantially in accordance with the above requirements may be rejected as improper. Such a rejection shall not extend the limitation hereinafter set forth.

E. Level One - An employee believing himself wronged by an alleged violation of the express provisions of this contract shall within five (5) days of its alleged occurrence orally discuss the grievance with his or her supervisor in an attempt to resolve same. If no resolution is obtained within five (5) days of the discussion an employee shall reduce the grievance to writing and proceed within five (5) days to Level Two.

Level Two -A copy of the written grievance shall be filed with the superintendent or his/her designated agent as specified in Level One with the endorsement thereon of the approval or disapproval of the Union. Within five (5) days of the receipt of the grievance, the superintendent or his/her designated agent shall arrange a meeting with the grievant and/or steward. Within five

(5) days of the discussion the superintendent or his/her designated agent shall render his/her decision in writing, transmitting a copy of the same to the grievant, and the Union shall retain a copy in their office.

Level Three - If no decision is rendered by the Superintendent within five (5) days of the discussion or if the decision is unsatisfactory to the grievant or to the Union, the Union may submit the grievance for binding arbitration, provided such submission is made within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Superintendent's answer. The selection of an arbitrator shall be done through the procedure set forth by the American Arbitration Association. (R-06)

All cost of arbitration shall be borne by the party whose case does not prevail. The parties shall bear individually the costs of presenting their respective cases in arbitration. The arbitrator shall decide who has won the arbitration, and the decision shall be limited by the express terms of this agreement.

- F. Should an employee fail to institute or appeal a decision within the time limits specified, or leave the employ of the board, all further proceedings on a previously instituted grievance (except a claim involving a remedy directly benefiting the grievant regardless of his/her employment) shall be barred.
- G. The employee may be accompanied by a representative of the local union in grievance action in Level 2 and/or 3.
- H. All preparation, filing presentation or consideration of grievances shall be held at times other than when an employee or steward are to be on duty, unless a meeting is scheduled by the employer during the employees' duty hours.

ARTICLE 10

DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURE

Employees with seniority shall be disciplined or discharged only for just cause. Employees shall have the right to challenge the propriety of disciplinary action or discharge through the regular grievance procedure. At the request of the employee, the Steward or any other representative of the Union may be present at any disciplinary meetings and shall represent the employee at all levels of disciplinary proceedings.

In fairness to employees, the Board shall follow the principles of progressive discipline, including the following steps:

- Verbal warning
- Written warning
- Suspension without pay
- Discharge

It is understood that the seriousness of some offenses may result in disciplinary action at a higher level than the order of discipline listed above.

Any disciplinary meeting shall be conducted in a private setting away from other employees and the public.

ARTICLE 11

LEAVES OF ABSENCE

A. Any employee desiring a leave of absence from his/her employment shall secure written permission from the Employer.

The maximum leave of absence shall be for ninety (90) days and may be extended for like periods, provided the Employer has granted an extension prior to the end of such original leave.

Permission for extension must be secured from both the Local Union and the Employer. During the period of absence the employee shall not engage in gainful employment. Failure to comply with this provision shall result in the complete loss of seniority rights and/or discharge for the employee involved. Inability to work because of proven sickness or injury shall not result in the loss of seniority rights. Seniority and fringe benefits shall be frozen while the employee is on leave. The employer shall have the right to have the employee examined by a physician selected by the employer in the event there is a disagreement with respect to sickness or injury. (R-89)

- B. The Employer agrees to grant time off not to exceed three (3) days in any one calendar year, without discrimination or loss of seniority rights and without pay, to a maximum of two (2) employees designated by the union to attend a labor convention, or serve in any capacity on other official Union Business provided 48 hours written notice is given to the employer, specifying length of time off for Union activities.
- C. All employees shall be granted upon written request to the employer two (2) paid personal business leave days each school year. Personal days shall be requested one week in advance. Such personal business leave days shall be taken at the rate of I/2 day per occurrence. Employees need not give supervisor reason for their use of their personal business leave days. Personal business leave days shall not be asked for nor approved for the following reason: Other employment or seeking new employment (R-96). At the end of each year, unused Personal business leave days, if any, shall be accumulated to a maximum of four (4) days. Accumulated days in excess of four (4) shall be added to the employee's accumulated sick leave. Personal business days shall not be used to begin or extend a holiday or vacation period unless application is made at least two weeks in advance and is approved by the Superintendent. (R-15)
- D. Three days may be used for bereavement due to each death of a member of the employee's immediate family. Immediate family should be construed to include: spouse, father, mother, step parents, son, daughter, step children, brother, sister, all other in-laws, grandmother, grandfather, grandchildren, or any resident in the employee's home to whom the employee is related within the third degree of consanguinity. All three days shall be paid by the employer. (R-15)

E. Extended Union Leave: Leaves of absence without pay may be granted to an employee elected or selected by the Union. A maximum of one (1) employee may be approved for a leave of up to forty-five (45) days with a thirty (30) day written notice to the employer. For leaves of less than ten (10) days, ten (10) working days written notice to the employer is required. Seniority will continue to accrue while on such leave. (N-15)

ARTICLE 12

SICK LEAVE

- A. Sick leave shall accrue at the rate of one (1) day per month worked, to a maximum of twelve (12) days per year. Sick leave shall accumulate to a maximum of one hundred eighty (180) days. (R-15)
- B. Sick leave shall be available for use by employees in the bargaining unit for the following purposes:
 - Acute personal illness or incapacity over which the employee has no reasonable control.
 - Up to five (5) total days per year to care for serious illness of a natural or adopted child, spouse, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, parent or parent-in-law. (R-92)
 - To attend the serious illness of the spouse in the case of substantial hardship to the employee.
 - Sick leave for medical or dental appointments or treatment shall be taken in not less than one-half (½) day increments.
 - Sick leave will be authorized when an employee is taken ill on the job.
- C. A sick day shall be construed to be one regular duty day, the number of hours regularly scheduled or contained therein not-withstanding.
- D. An employee who is sick shall notify the supervisor the night before if possible, but no later than 6:00 a.m. The employee shall also notify the supervisor the day he/she is sick whether he/she intends to work the next day.
- E. The Employer may require medical proof of illness or medical clearance to return to work from illness or a disability which resulted in an absence of more than three (3) days. (N-03)
- F. Employees with a minimum of ten (10) years of service with the District shall be paid \$25 per day of accumulated but unused sick leave days upon retirement into the MPSERS. (R-12)

WAGES AND HOURS

- A. The job classification and applicable rates of pay, as set forth in Addendum A through D shall remain in full force and effect for the duration of this Agreement.
- B. Work will be guaranteed in all classifications based on the school calendar. Number of days will be established by the posting of the negotiated school calendar in compliance with state law.
- C. All employees shall be compensated at a rate of time and one-half (1½) their regular rate of pay for all time worked in excess of forty (40) hours in a week. Employees shall be compensated at a rate of one and one-half (1½) times their regular rate of pay for all hours worked on Saturdays. All employees will receive double (2) time for all hours worked on Sunday.
- D. Because the amount of work available varies with the menu and student participation, the number of regular scheduled work hours may vary for each of the food service classifications and workers.
- E. All food service employees that work at least four (4) hours but less than six (6) hours/day shall be entitled to one (1) fifteen (15) minute rest period, and all food service employees that work six (6) hours or more hours/day, shall be entitled to two (2) fifteen (15) minute rest periods. Employees shall be entitled to combine their two (2) fifteen (15) minute rest periods into one (1) thirty (30) minute rest period, if feasible based on the schedule and approved by the Supervisor.
- F. Employees will be paid six (6) days bonus pay (holidays) as the holidays pass for the duration of this contract for the following holidays: Labor Day, Thanksgiving, the day after Thanksgiving, Christmas, New Year's Day, and Memorial Day. The bonus will be equal to the employee's current hourly rate times the average number of regularly scheduled hours worked per day. (R-15)
- G. All regular bus runs shall be paid at the rate of two (2) hours per run, which shall include bus preparation time and fueling. Bus preparation for special runs shall be allowed only when the special run is more than one (1) hour removed from the regular AM or PM run, and shall be paid at .25 (1/4) hours. (N-94)

SAFETY AND HEALTH

- A. As a condition of employment bus drivers must satisfactorily pass a physical examination given by a physician designated by the employer. Bus drivers will abide by state requirements relative to physical exams at employer expense, are required of all bus drivers thereafter. (R-15)
- B. Employees shall immediately report to the supervisor all accidents or injuries sustained by students or themselves, or accidents in which the vehicle entrusted to them is involved. Employees shall fill out report forms made available by the employer. Drivers are vested with the authority to make determination of compliance with safety rules and regulations aboard their buses prior to starting a run or driving on their run. Drivers have the right to refuse to start or continue a run or trip where, in the driver's opinion, an unsafe condition exists until such vehicle is released by an appropriate supervisor.
- C. The employer shall make reasonable provisions for the safety and health of its employees while performing their duties during the hours of their employment and shall furnish such protective devices or equipment as is reasonably required thereby.
- D. For trips in excess of 75 miles (round trip), drivers may request and shall be provided a cash advance of \$100.00 and a letter of authorization to contract for necessary repairs and services. (R-89)
- E. Special trips shall be posted at least 24 hours in advance of trip departure, whenever possible. If a new trip comes up in less than 24 hours or a trip is turned back in, it will be offered in rotation, beginning with the most senior driver who already has a trip for that day, who will have the choice to keep the trip they already have or taking the new trip. In the event they accept the new trip, their original trip will be offered in rotation.
- F. There shall be an emergency notification number provided to all drivers for use during extra trips.
- G. For all out-of-town events, admission for the bus driver, to that event, will be paid for or reimbursed by the district.

ARTICLE 15

GENERAL

A. Non-Employee Representatives. A local or international representative of the Union may be permitted to visit the operation of the Employer during working hours to talk with the steward or representatives of the Employer concerning matters covered by this agreement provided, however, such visitation shall not interfere with the performance of work by bargaining unit employees. A time and place for visits must be arranged by mutual agreement in advance between the Union and the Employer.

- B. The Union shall have the right to examine time sheets and other records pertaining to the computation of compensation of any employee whose pay is in dispute or any other records of the employee pertaining to a specific grievance, at reasonable times, with written employee consent.
- C. The employer shall provide for bi-weekly pay periods. Each employee shall be provided with an itemized statement of his/her earnings and of all deductions made for any purpose.
- D. The employer shall provide a bulletin board in the facility where the employees hereunder are employed for the posting of seniority and for use of the Union and Employer. Only official notices are to be posted and must have the signature of the Union business representative or of the shop steward for the Union, and the employer or his/her representative.
- E. The normal work year for all employees shall be in accordance with the school calendar as established by the Board of Education.
- F. Special trips and summer programs are not to be considered as regular hours of work. In the event summer driving is available, regular drivers will be offered driving in seniority order, based on a rotation list to begin in the summer of 1992. (R-92)
- G. All employees covered by this Agreement shall be required to report for work at the time established by the Employer.
- H. Employees shall be required to keep the Employer informed at all times as to their current address and telephone number. It is understood that any communication addressed to an employee at his or her last address on record with the Employer shall constitute notice to the employee of the contents of such communication.
- Employees required to participate in in-service training shall be paid at the employee's regular hourly rate for the time spent in attending the in-service training for the duration of the contract. (R-89)
- J. Drivers who are paid at the driving rate between runs may be assigned non-transportation duties during such time.
- K. Employees must immediately report to the supervisor all accidents or injuries sustained by students or themselves or in which the vehicle entrusted to them is involved irrespective of how minor such accident may appear to be. Employees shall be required to fill out a report form made available by the employer. All accidents must be policed.
- L. It shall be the responsibility of each employee to meet the qualifications for a license required for the performance of job responsibilities. The driver will pay for the first Commercial Driver's license he/she acquires as a bus driver for the Watervliet Public Schools. The school shall reimburse the cost of the Commercial Driver's license after the first license so long as the employee is a driver at the Watervliet Schools. Any license required must be kept valid and up-to date to qualify for continuous employment. (R-92)
- M. Applicants and drivers shall be free from any physical defects that could interfere with the safe operation of a school bus and free from any communicable infectious or contagious disease.

- N. Food service employees shall be free from any physical defects that could interfere with the safe operation of the lunch program and free from communicable infectious or contagious disease.
- O. A kitchen employee, who is ServSafe® certified, will be on duty when food is being cooked in District kitchens used for scheduled activities outside of regular hours. Minimum call in time for such employees shall be three (3) hours.
- P. All SEIU Members shall attend in-service training meetings. All drivers shall also attend scheduled meetings called by the bus supervisor. Pre-school meetings and a minimum of six local meetings during the year may be required.
- Q. The Board of Education shall make available to all employees such life insurance and health care programs as outlined in Addendum "E" of this agreement.
- R. The Board will make arrangements for any needed refueling with the needed fuel suppliers.
- S. Family Medical Leave Act
 - Nothing in the act shall be construed to diminish the obligation of the employer to comply with the terms of this collective bargaining agreement, if such agreement provided greater family or medical leave rights to employees than the rights established under the act.
 - The rights established for employees under the act shall not be diminished by this collective bargaining agreement. (N-94)
 - 3. Under provisions of the federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA), up to twelve (12) weeks of unpaid leave may be approved. The Employer may require medical verification. If the employee fails to return to work, he/she shall reimburse the District for the insurance premium paid by the employer in accordance with the FMLA. (N-03)
- Bus Washing. Bus Drivers shall be required to wash their bus once every month, September through May.

U. Use of Facilities

 The Union shall have the right to use the Employers facilities for meetings as long as the Union abides by the rules and regulations established by the Employer for the use of such facilities. (N-15)

V. Member Information

 The Employer agrees to provide a transaction report to the Union in electronic form by October 1 and again by February 1, containing the following information for each employee in the bargaining unit: employee's name, street address, city, state, zip code, phone number, hire date, hours of daily employment, work location and classification. (N-15)

SEPARABILITY AND SAVINGS CLAUSE

- A. In the event that any provision of this Agreement shall at any time be declared invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the decision shall not invalidate the entire Agreement, it being the express intention of the parties that all other provisions shall remain in full force and effect.
- B. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, as set forth above, the parties shall enter into negotiations for the purpose of arriving at a mutually satisfactory replacement for the provision held invalid.
- C. Emergency Financial Manager
 - If an emergency financial manager is appointed by the state under PA 4 of 2011, Fiscal
 Accountability Act, the emergency manager may reject, modify, or terminate the collective
 bargaining agreement in his/her discretion. This authority is a prohibited subject of
 bargaining under the Public Employment Relations Act (PERA). (N-15)

DURATION

This Agreement shall be effective July 1, 2015 and shall terminate upon expiration date of June 30, 2018. Notice of intent to renegotiate an Agreement may be submitted by either party 60 days prior to the expiration of this contract.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused the Agreement to be executed.

SEIU LOCAL 517-M	WATERVLIET PUBLIC SCHOOLS
By/ Olle Molock	By: Joseph
Date: 8-28-15	Date: Nept + TO15
Ву:	By: Cas
Date:	Date: 2015

Bus Driver Wages ADDENDUM A	2014-15	2% 2015-16	2% 2016-17	2% 2017-18
	8			
Probation to 1 year	14.78	15.08	15.38	15.68
1-2 years	15.67	15.98	16.30	16.63
After 2 years	15.85	16.17	16.49	16.82
ADDENDUM B	2014-15	2015-16	2016-17	2017-18
Bus Driver Layover Rate	12.74	12.99	13.25	13.52

ADDENDUM C

Compensation for breakdown shall be at the regular rate for the first six hours of a breakdown

Food Service Wages

ADDENDUM D		2%	2%	2%	
Lead Cook/Cook	2014-15	2015-16	2016-17	2017-18	
Probation - 1 year	11.07	11.29	11.52	11.75	
1-2 years	11.77	12.01	12.25	12.49	
2-3 years	12.17	12.41	12.66	12.91	
3-4 years	12.83	13.09	13.35	13.62	
4-5 years	13.52	13.79	14.07	14.35	

Food Service Assistant(computer/food prep/kitchen/cashier duties)

Probation - 1 year	10.00	10.20	10.40	10.61
1-2 years	10.24	10.44	10.65	10.87
2-3 years	10.49	10.70	10.91	11.13
3-4 years	10.74	10.95	11.17	11.40
4-5 years	10.97	11.19	11.41	11.64
Dishwasher/Substitute				
Probation - 1 year	9.20	9.38	9.57	9.76
1-2 years	9.45	9.64	9.83	10.03
2-3 years	9.70	9.89	10.09	10.29
3-4 years	9.93	10.13	10.33	10.54
4-5 years	10.18	10.38	10.59	10.80

ADDENDUM E

Health Insurance

For Food Service Workers hired before 06/06/08 and Bus Drivers hired before 07/01/09, and not covered by health insurance available to spouse, the Board will provide payment toward MESSA Choices II or MESSA ABC insurance at the rate equal to the statutory hard cap figures established by the State for single subscribers for the duration of this Agreement. Effective 2015-2016 the prescription drug card shall be RX Saver and beginning the 2015-2016 school year the deductible is set at \$200/\$400 and copays will be in effect for Office Visits (\$20), Urgent Care (\$25), and Emergency Room (\$50). All employees may purchase insurance at 100% of the insurance cost.

Food Service workers hired before 06/06/08 and Bus Drivers hired before 07/01/09 who do not take the Board provided insurance will receive a cash in lieu payment of \$115/month.

Life Insurance

For Food Service Workers hired before 06/06/08 and Bus Drivers hired before 07/01/09, the Board will provide \$15,000 term life insurance without cost to the employee.